

ALVORD UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Board of Education Approved August 2002*
SCHOOL SITE COUNCIL BYLAWS

La Sierra High School
Site Approved – September 2, 2015

*Schools may not revise or edit the SSC Bylaws template without consulting with the State and Federal Programs Office.

ARTICLE I
Name of Council

The name of this council shall be the La Sierra High School Site Council.

ARTICLE II
Role of Council

The school improvement plan, including a budget, shall be developed and recommended by the School Site Council. The School Site Council, following approval of a school improvement plan by the school district governing board, shall have ongoing responsibility to review with the principal, teachers, other school personnel, and pupils (secondary only) the implementation of the school improvement program and to assess periodically the effectiveness of such a program. Modifications or any improvement to the plan or budgets that are included in the plans shall be developed, recommended, and approved or disapproved in the same manner. The council shall carry out all other duties and responsibilities assigned to it in Education Code 64001 of the State of California.

ARTICLE III
Members

Section 1 – Size and Composition

The School Site Council shall be properly constituted.

Education Code Sections 52852 and 64001 and Alvord Unified School District require that a school site council be established at each school that participates in SIP, SBCP, or SB 65 and sets forth the following composition of that council:

- The principal
- Teachers selected by school's teachers
- Classified employees selected by the school's classified employees
- Other school personnel, where applicable, selected by other school personnel
- Parents/guardians of the students attending the school, chosen by other such parents/guardians or community members selected as representatives by such parents/guardians¹
- In secondary schools, students attending the school, chosen by other such students

The needs and resources of the school improvement program require that membership include broad representation of parents, students, and staff, including all socioeconomic and ethnic groups represented in the school attendance area.

¹ A parent or guardian of a student is defined in the *California Code of Regulations (1990)*, Section 4002, as a parent or guardian who is not employed by the school district. Within the SIP provisions this limits a parent or guardian who is a district employee to being able only to serve on the staff position of the SSC and then only at the school site where he or she is employed. The SBCP and SB 65 programs provide for a wider range of parent/employee membership through the following language in Education Code Sections 52852: "An employee of a school who is also a parent or guardian of a pupil who attends a school other than the school of the parents or guardian's employment, is not disqualified by virtue of this employment from serving as a parent representative on the school site council established for the school that his or her child or ward attends."

Representation on the council shall be: the principal, representatives of teachers selected by teachers at the school, other school personnel selected by other school personnel at the school, parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents, and pupils (secondary only) selected by pupils attending the school. The council shall be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom teachers, and other school personnel; and (b) equal numbers of parents and pupils (secondary only).

No alternates are allowed.

Classroom teachers shall constitute the majority of those persons representing school staff.

Council members representing parents and/or community members may be employees of the school district but may not serve as a parent representative at the site of employment.

The process for selecting members of the School Site Council may be as follows: nominating and balloting electoral process within each required group. Members are selected by their peers.

Section 2 – Term of Office

All members of the council shall serve for no more than a two-year term. Members may succeed themselves for an additional year(s) if re-elected by their peers. However, if two-year terms are utilized, in order to achieve staggered membership, one-half, or the nearest approximation thereof, of the members representing parents or community members and one-half, or the nearest approximation thereof, of the members representing teachers and other school personnel (except the principal) shall serve for a one-year term only during the first year of the council's existence. In the use of two-year terms, after the first year of the council's existence, all terms shall be two years in length. At the first regular meeting of the council, a chance method shall be used to determine which members shall serve one-year terms.

Section 3 – Termination of Membership

A member shall no longer hold membership should he or she cease to be a resident of the area or no longer meets the membership requirements under which he or she was selected; e.g., a parent becomes employed by the site. Membership may be terminated for any member who is absent from three consecutive regular meetings with the approval of a majority of the council's members.

Section 4 – Transfer of Membership

Membership in the School Site Council is not transferable or assignable.

Section 5 – Resignation

Any member may resign by filing a written resignation with the School Site Council.

Section 6 – Vacancy

Any vacancy on the council shall be filled for the remainder of the school year with the approval of the majority of the council members. Council members may make nominations for vacancies. If the unexpired term is for another full year thereafter, the term for that year shall be filled through the regular selection process.

ARTICLE IV Officers

Section 1 – Officers

The officers of the School Site Council shall be a chairperson, vice-chairperson, secretary, and such other officers, as the council may deem desirable.

Section 2 – Election and Term of Office

The officers of the School Site Council shall be elected annually and shall serve for one year. Officers may be re-elected.

Section 3 – Removal

Any officer may be removed by a two-thirds vote of all members sitting on the School Site Council whenever, in the judgment of the council, the best interests of the council would be served.

Section 4 – Vacancy

A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification, or otherwise shall, by special election, be filled by the School Site Council for the unexpired portion of the term.

Section 5 – Chairperson

The chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the School Site Council and may sign all letters, reports, and other communications of the School Site Council. In addition, the chairperson shall perform all duties incident to the office of chairperson and such other duties as may be prescribed by the School Site Council from time to time.

Section 6 – Vice-Chairperson

The duties of the vice-chairperson shall be to represent the chairperson in assigned duties and to substitute for the chairperson during his or her absence, and the vice-chairperson shall perform such other duties as from time to time may be assigned by the chairperson or by the School Site Council.

Section 7 – Secretary

The secretary shall keep the minutes of the meetings, both regular and special, of the school site council and shall promptly transmit to each of the members, to the school district, and to such other persons as the School Site Council may deem, true and correct copies of the minutes of such meetings; see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these bylaws; keep the group's records, including attendance; keep a membership list with addresses and telephone numbers of members; and, in general, perform all duties incident to the office of secretary and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to the office by the chairperson or by the School Site Council.

ARTICLE V Committees

Section 1 – Standing and Special Committees

The School Site Council may from time to time establish and abolish such standing or special committees as it may desire. No standing or special committee may exercise the authority of the School Site Council.

Section 2 – Membership

Unless otherwise determined by the School Site Council in its decision to establish a committee, the chairperson of the School Site Council shall appoint members to the various committees.

Section 3 – Term of Office

Each member of a committee shall continue as such for the term of his or her appointment and until his or her successor is appointed, unless the committee shall be sooner terminated or abolished, or unless such member shall cease to qualify as a member thereof.

Section 4 – Rules

Each committee may adopt rules for its own government not inconsistent with these bylaws or with rules adopted by the School Site Council or with policies of the governing board.

Section 5 – Quorum

Unless otherwise provided in the decision of the School Site Council designating a committee, a majority of the committee shall constitute a quorum, and the act of a majority of the members present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the committee.

Section 6 – Vacancy

A vacancy in the membership of any committee may be filled by an appointment made in the same manner as provided in the case of the original appointment.

ARTICLE VI Meetings of the School Site Council

Section 1 – Regular Meetings

The School Site Council shall meet regularly (minimum of 7 meetings per year).

Section 2 – Special Meetings

Special meetings may be called by the chairperson or by majority vote of the School Site Council. `

Section 3 – Place of Meetings

The School Site Council shall hold its regular monthly meetings and its special meetings in a facility provided by the school and readily accessible by all members of the public, including handicapped persons.

Section 4 – Notice of Meetings

Notice of the meeting must be posted at the school site or other appropriate place accessible to the public. The notice of the meeting must be posted at least 72 hours before the meeting. The notice must include the date, time, and location of the meeting and contain an agenda describing each item of business to be discussed or acted upon.

Section 5 – Decisions of the School Site Council

All decisions of the School Site Council shall be made only after an affirmative vote of a majority of its members in attendance, provided a quorum is in attendance. Each member shall be entitled to one vote and may cast that vote on each matter submitted to a vote of the council. Absentee ballots shall not be permitted.

Section 6 – Quorum

The presence of 51 percent of the total membership shall be required in order to constitute a quorum necessary for the transaction of the business of the School Site Council.

Section 7 – Conduct of Meetings

Councils or committees may not take any action on any items of business unless that item was on the posted agenda, unless the members, by a unanimous vote of those present, find that there is a need to take immediate action and that the need for action came to the attention of the council or committee subsequent to the posting of the agenda.

Section 8 – Meetings Open to the Public

All regular and special meetings of the School Site Council and of its standing or special committees shall be open at all times to the public.

Section 9 – Hearing Session

This item is to be placed on the Agenda so that members of the audience have an opportunity to speak regarding subjects or concerns that do not appear on the Agenda. The chairperson reserves the right to limit speaking time to three minutes. Government Code Section 54954.2 and Education Code Section 35145.5 prohibit the Council from discussing or acting upon matters not on the Agenda.

ARTICLE VII Amendments

These bylaws may be amended by a two-thirds vote of the members of the School Site Council. Amendments must conform with State and Federal guidelines and must be presented to the membership one month prior to voting. The Alvord Unified School District Board of Education shall have final approval of all Bylaws.

Removed references to outdated Education Code (EC 52012 and 54724) and added reference to correct Education Code 64001 during 8/14/2017 review.

DISTRITO ESCOLAR UNIFICADO ALVORD
PROCEDIMIENTOS APROBADOS POR LA MESA DIRECTIVA
REGLAMENTOS del CONCILIO ESCOLAR
 (Aprobados por la Mesa Directiva , el 1 de agosto del 2002)
Escuela Preparatoria La Sierra
Aprobado por la Escuela = 2 de septiembre de 2015

Artículo I - Nombre del Concilio

El nombre de este concilio deberá ser Concilio Escolar de la Escuela Preparatoria La Sierra.

Artículo II - Propósito del Concilio

El plan para el mejoramiento escolar, incluyendo el presupuesto, deberá ser desarrollado y recomendado por el Concilio Escolar. El Concilio Escolar, después de la aprobación del plan de mejoramiento escolar por la mesa directiva del distrito escolar, deberá tener la responsabilidad continua de revisar con el director/a, los maestros, otros miembros del personal escolar, y los estudiantes (únicamente escuelas secundarias) la implementación del programa de mejoramiento escolar y de evaluar periódicamente la efectividad de dicho programa. Las modificaciones o cualquier mejoramiento al plan o presupuestos que están incluidos en el plan deberán ser desarrollados, recomendados y aprobados o negados de la misma forma.

Artículo III - Miembros

Sección 1 - Tamaño y Composición

El Concilio Escolar deberá estar propiamente constituido.

La secciones del Código de Educación 52852 y 64001 y el Distrito Escolar Unificado Alvord requiere que se establezca un concilio escolar en cada escuela y que participe en SIP, SBCP o SB 65 y declara la siguiente composición de dicho concilio:

- El Director/a
- Maestros seleccionados por los maestros de la escuela
- Empleados clasificados seleccionados por los empleados clasificados de la escuela
- Otros miembros del personal escolar, en donde aplique, seleccionado por otros miembros del personal escolar
- Padres / guardianes de los estudiantes que asisten a la escuela, seleccionados por otros padres /guardianes o miembros de la comunidad seleccionados como representantes por dichos padres/guardianes ¹
- En las escuelas secundarias, los estudiantes que asisten a la escuela, seleccionados por otros estudiantes de dicha escuela.

Las necesidades y los recursos del programa de mejoramiento escolar requieren que la membresía incluya una amplia representación de los padres, estudiantes, y personal escolar incluyendo todos los grupos socioeconómicos y étnicos representados en el área de asistencia escolar. La representación en el concilio escolar

¹ Un padre o guardián de un estudiante se define en el Código de Reglamentos de California (1990), sección 4002, como un padre o guardián no empleado por el distrito escolar. Dentro las provisiones del programa SIP se limita el padre o guardián, el cual está empleado por el distrito, de servir solo en una posición de facultad del Concilio Escolar y solo en la escuela donde el / ella esta empleado/a. Los programas SBCP y SB 65 proveen una capacidad más amplia para el padre /empleado por medio de los términos legales en la Sección 52852 del Código de Educación: “Un empleado escolar el cual también es padre guardián de un estudiante que asiste a una escuela que no sea en la que trabaja el padre o guardián, no podrá ser descalificado por virtud de este empleo de servir como padre Representante en el Concilio Escolar establecido por la escuela en la cual su hijo/a o menor bajo custodia asiste.

deberá ser: el director/a, representantes de maestros seleccionados por maestros de la escuela, otros miembros del personal escolar seleccionados por otros miembros de dicha escuela, padres de estudiantes que asisten a la escuela seleccionados por otros padres de estudiantes que asisten a dicha escuela, y estudiantes (únicamente escuelas secundarias) seleccionados por otros estudiantes que asisten a dicha escuela. El concilio deberá ser propiamente constituido para asegurar la paridad entre (a) el director, los maestros de salón de estudio y otros miembros del personal escolar; y (b) números iguales de padres y estudiantes (únicamente en escuelas secundarias).

No se permiten alternos.

Los maestros del salón de estudio deberán constituir la mayoría de aquellas personas representando al personal escolar.

Los miembros del concilio que representan a los padres y / o miembros de la comunidad pueden ser empleados del distrito escolar pero no pueden servir como representante de padres en la escuela de la cual están empleados.

El proceso para la selección de los miembros del Concilio Escolar puede ser el siguiente: proceso electoral de nominaciones y votación dentro de cada grupo. Los miembros son seleccionados por sus semejantes.

Sección 2 – Terminación de Puesto

Todos los miembros del concilio escolar servirán por un periodo no más de dos años. Los miembros pueden seguir en el mismo puesto por un año(s) adicional(es) si son reelegidos por sus semejantes. Sin embargo, si se utilizan términos de dos años para lograr intervalo de membresía, la mitad, o aproximación más cercana a este, de los miembros representantes de los padres y otros miembros del personal escolar (excepto el director/a) deberán servir únicamente por un término de un año durante

el primer año de la existencia del concilio. En el uso de términos de dos años, después del primer año de la existencia del concilio, todos los términos de puestos serán de dos años de duración. En la primera reunión regular del concilio, se seleccionaran por un método al azar los miembros que servirán unos términos de un año.

Sección 3 – Terminación de Membresía

Un miembro no deberá continuar su membresía si el o ella deja de residir en el área o no cumple con los requisitos bajo los cuales fue elegido/a: p.ej., si un padre/madre se emplea en el plantel escolar. La membresía de cualquier miembro puede terminarse si falta a tres reuniones regulares consecutivas con la aprobación de la mayoría de los miembros del concilio.

Sección 4 – Transferencia de Membresía

La membresía en el Concilio Escolar no se deberá transferir o reasignar.

Sección 5 – Renunciación

Cualquier miembro puede renunciar del concilio sometiendo por escrito su renunciación con el nombre del Concilio Escolar.

Sección 6 – Vacancia

Cualquier vacancia en el concilio escolar deberá ser ocupada por el resto del año escolar con la aprobación de la mayoría de los miembros del concilio. Los miembros del concilio pueden hacer nominaciones para las vacancias. Si el puesto vigente es por otro año después de esto, el puesto para este año deberá ser ocupado por medio del proceso de selección regular.

Artículo IV - Oficiales

Sección 1 – Oficiales

Los oficiales del Concilio Escolar deberán ser el presidente, vicepresidente, secretaria, y tales otros miembros que el concilio considere necesarios.

Sección 2 – Elección y Terminación de Puesto

Los oficiales del Concilio Escolar deberán ser elegidos anualmente y deberán servir por un término de un año. Los oficiales pueden ser reelegidos.

Sección 3 – Remoción de Cargo

Un oficial puede ser removido de su cargo por dos tercios del voto de todos los miembros del Concilio Escolar, en cualquier momento que, a juicio del concilio, para mejor cumplir con los intereses del Concilio.

Sección 4 – Vacancia

La vacancia de cualquier puesto debido a fallecimiento, renuncia, remoción, descalificación, o por cualquier otra razón, por elección especial, deberá ser ocupada por el Concilio Escolar por el periodo de tiempo restante.

Sección 5 – Presidente

El presidente deberá presidir en todas las reuniones del Concilio Escolar y podrá firmar todas las cartas, informes y otra comunicación del Concilio Escolar. Además, el presidente deberá llevar a cabo todos los deberes pertinentes al puesto de presidente y tales otras responsabilidades que en ocasión el Concilio Escolar le pueda asignar.

Sección 6 – Vicepresidente

Las responsabilidades del vicepresidente deberán ser de representar al presidente en los deberes asignados y de sustituir para el presidente durante su ausencia. El vicepresidente, deberá ejercer tales otros deberes que en ocasión el presidente pueda asignar.

Sección 7 – Secretaria

La secretaria mantendrá las minutas de las reuniones del Concilio Escolar, regulares y especiales, y con prontitud transmitirá a cada miembro del concilio, al distrito escolar, y a tales otras personas que el Concilio Escolar considere apropiado, copias de las minutas verídicas y correctas de tales reuniones; asegurará que todas las notificaciones de las reuniones se distribuyen debidamente de acuerdo a las provisiones de estos reglamentos; mantener archivos de grupos lo cual incluye la asistencia en cada reunión; mantener una lista de miembros con los domicilios y números de teléfono; y, en general, ejercer todos los deberes del puesto de secretaria y tales otras responsabilidades deberes que en ocasión el presidente o el Concilio Escolar pueda asignar.

Artículo V - Comités

Sección 1 – Comités Permanente y Especiales

El Concilio Escolar puede, de tiempo en tiempo, establecer y abolir los comités permanentes o especiales según lo deseen. Ningún comité permanente y especial tendrá la autoridad igual que el Concilio Escolar.

Sección 2 – Membresía

A menos que el Concilio Escolar determine de otra manera la decisión de establecer a un comité, el presidente del Concilio Escolar asignará a los miembros a los varios comités.

Sección 3 – Terminación de Puesto

Cada miembro de un comité deberá continuar en dicho puesto por el término asignado y hasta que su sucesor sea asignado, a menos que ocurra la terminación o abolición del comité, o a menos que dicho miembro deje de calificar como miembro.

Sección 4 – Reglas

Cada comité pueda aprobar reglas para su propio gobierno, consistentes con estos reglamentos o con las reglas aprobadas por el Concilio Escolar o con las pólizas de la mesa gobernante.

Sección 5 – Quórum

A menos que se haya proveído en la decisión del comité del Concilio Escolar en cuanto a la designación de un comité, la mayoría del comité debería constituir un quórum, y la acción de la mayoría de los miembros presentes será la acción del comité.

Sección 6 – Vacancia

Una vacancia de la membresía de cualquier comité puede ser ocupada por una asignación de la misma manera según proveído en el caso de la asignación original.

Artículo VI – Reuniones del Concilio Escolar

Sección 1 – Reuniones Regulares

El Concilio Escolar se reunirá regularmente (mínimo 7 reuniones por año escolar).

Sección 2 – Reuniones Especiales

Se puede llamar reuniones especiales por el presidente o por la mayoría del voto del Concilio Escolar.

Sección 3 – Lugar de Reuniones

El Concilio Escolar deberá conducir sus reuniones regulares mensuales en un lugar proveído por la escuela y accesible por los miembros del público, incluyendo las personas con discapacidades.

Sección 4 – Notificación de Reuniones

La notificación de las reuniones se deberá exhibir en el plantel escolar o en un lugar apropiado, accesible por el público. La notificación de la reunión deberá ser exhibida por lo menos 72 horas antes de la reunión. La

notificación deberá incluir la fecha, hora, y lugar de la reunión y deberá incluir la agenda describiendo cada asunto que se discutirá o la acción tomada.

Sección 5 – Decisiones del Concilio Escolar

Todas las decisiones del Concilio Escolar se deberán hacer únicamente después de haber tomado un voto afirmativo de la mayoría de sus miembros presentes, y que haya habido un quórum en asistencia. Cada miembro deberá tener el derecho de un voto y puede votar en cada asunto sometido para voto al concilio escolar. No se permitirán las balotas de votación por ausencias.

Sección 6 – Quórum

Se requiere la presencia del 51 por ciento del total de la membresía para constituir un quórum necesario para la transacción de cualquier asunto del Concilio Escolar.

Sección 7 – Conduciendo las Reuniones

Los concilios o comités no pueden tomar acción en ningunos de los asuntos a menos que se hayan exhibido en la agenda, a menos que los miembros, por voto unánime de los miembros presentes, deciden que existe la necesidad de tomar acción inmediata y que la necesidad para una acción llega al concilio o comité subsecuentemente a la exhibición de la agenda.

Sección 8 – Reuniones Abiertas al Publico

Todas las reuniones regulares y especiales del Concilio Escolar y de sus comités permanentes o especiales deberán siempre estar abiertas al público.

Sección 9 – Sesión de Audiencias

El asunto se deberá colocar en la agenda para que los miembros de la audiencia tengan la oportunidad de opinar acerca de los asuntos o las preocupaciones que no aparecen en la Agenda. El presidente reserva el derecho de limitar el tiempo del presentador a tres minutos. La Sección 54954.2 del Código del Gobierno 35145.5 prohíbe al Concilio Escolar discutir o tomar acción en asunto que no está en la Agenda.

Artículo VII - Enmiendas

Estos reglamentos pueden ser enmendados por dos tercios del voto de los miembros del Concilio Escolar. Las enmiendas deben concordar con las reglas Estatales y Federales y deben presentarse a los miembros del concilio un mes antes de la votación. El Distrito Escolar Unificado Alvord deberá tener la aprobación final de todas las reglas.